Policy Manual



Introduction

Contents

ACCREDITATION STATEMENT	2
ACCREDITING BODIES	3
ALCOHOL/DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY AND DRUG-FREE AWARENESS PROGRAM	4
CHILD ABUSE	5
COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT	6
CRIME AWARENESS AND CAMPUS SECURITY ACT OF 1990	9
DEGREES AND CERTIFICATES	10
EMPLOYMENT	11
ETHICS/INTEGRITY	14
ESSENTIAL SKILLS OUTCOMES	15
FAMILY EDUCATIONAL RIGHTS AND PRIVACY ACT (FERPA) OF 1974	15
HARASSMENT	16
HIPAA	17
MISSION	17
NOTICE OF NON-DISCRIMINATION	17
OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS	18
PHILOSOPHY	22
PUBLICATION AND LOGO USE	22
PURPOSES	23
VISION	24
APPENDIY	25



ACCREDITATION STATEMENT

Colby Community College is coordinated by the Kansas Board of Regents and accredited by the Higher Learning Commission. Individuals should direct questions, comments or concerns to:

Higher Learning Commission 230 South LaSalle Street, Suite 7-500 Chicago, IL 60604-1411 800-621-7440 or 312-263-0456 https://www.hlcommission.org

[Revised October 2022]



ACCREDITING BODIES

Kansas State Board of Nursing Landon State Office Bldg., 900 SW Jackson Topeka, KS 66612 (785) 296-4929 https://ksbn.kansas.gov

American Veterinary Medical Association 1931 North Meacham Road, Suite 100 Schaumburg, IL 60173-4360 (800) 248-2862 https://www.avma.org

Commission on Dental Accreditation 211 East Chicago Avenue 19th Floor Chicago, IL 60611 (312) 440-4653 https://coda.ada.org Commission on Accreditation in Physical Therapy Education 3030 Potomac Ave., Suite 100 Alexandria, VA 22305-3085 (703) 684-7373 https://www.capteonline.org

Kansas Board of Emergency Medical Services Landon State Office Bldg., Room 1031 900 Jackson Street Topeka, KS 66612 (785) 296-7296 https://www.ksbems.org/ems

Accreditation Commission for Education in Nursing, Inc. 3390 Peachtree Road NE, Suite 1400 Atlanta, GA 30326 (404) 975-5000 https://www.acenursing.org

[Updated July 2023]



ALCOHOL/DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY AND DRUG-FREE AWARENESS PROGRAM

The college's Alcohol/Drug-Free Workplace Policy and Awareness Program is designed to enhance the physical health and safety of our employees and students and to provide a safe workplace. All employees and students are expected to be in suitable mental and physical condition while at work or in a learning environment and to perform their jobs in a satisfactory fashion.

In accordance with this policy, when the use of central nervous system depressant or controlled substances interferes with an employee's or student's responsibilities, appropriate disciplinary action, which could include termination or expulsion, will be taken.

Colby Community College does not permit or condone the consumption of alcoholic beverages by any individual under the age of 21. As a general rule, no alcoholic beverage will be sold, serviced or consumed on College property. All laws, local, state, and federal, concerning the possession or use of illegal drugs by any student, faculty or staff member will be strictly enforced on the campus and at any event sponsored by the college.

The Board of Trustees may, by resolution adopted from time to time, authorize the consumption of alcoholic liquor and beverages in specified property which is under the control of the board and which is not used for classroom instruction pursuant to K.S.A. 41-719(h). [Revised November, 2007]

Information on local, state, and federal ordinances and statutes will be maintained in the Office of Student Services and will be available to students and employees. Students and employees are encouraged to obtain copies of the information.

All student violations of this policy will be handled on an individual basis affording each student the right to due process. Procedures of this process are described in the student handbook which may be accessed on the Colby Community College website. Sanctions which may be imposed include reprimand, probation, suspension, or expulsion.

It is the college's belief that all disciplinary sanctions should provide the opportunity for personal growth; to that end, counseling and referral for individual assessment may be included as a condition of any sanction.

[Revised April 2014] [Reviewed September 2020] [Revised October 2023]



CHILD ABUSE

A college employee or student who has reason to believe that a minor has been abused on the Colby Community College campus, on property owned or leased by the college, or while members of the faculty, staff or student body are participating in a college-related activity off-campus, or who has received a report or such alleged abuse, must report this information to the Vice President of Student Affairs or proper authorities as soon as possible. Faculty and staff who fail to report abuse may be subject to disciplinary action.

If there is a finding that the alleged abuse occurred, the college will assist the victim in obtaining appropriate counseling for the victim and members of the victim's family, as needed. Appropriate measures will be taken by the College to contact and work with local law enforcement regarding information about such reports.

[Added August 2012] [Revised April 2014; October 2020] [Reviewed July 2023]



COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT

All Colby Community College administration, faculty, staff and students are expected to comply with the United States Copyright Act. [Revised April 2014]

What works are copyrighted?

Unless you know for a fact that a particular work is in the public domain, you should assume that it is protected under copyright law. Works that can be copyrighted include books, magazines, maps, engravings, prints, musical compositions, charts, dramatic works, photographs, paintings, drawings, sculptures, motion pictures, computer programs, sound recordings, choreography and architectural works. Any of these forms that are stored digitally and available online are also protected by copyright.

Limitations of Copyrights

Intellectual property law allows certain limited use of copyrighted material without permission of the copyright holder. Some examples would include the use of copyrighted material for:

- Commentary
- Criticism
- News reporting
- Research
- Teaching or scholarship
- Archiving
- Access by the visually impaired

These exceptions fall under the "Fair Use" provisions of the law and allow some limited use of copyrighted materials in academic settings without permission of the copyright holder.

What is Fair Use?

Fair use is a set of recognized limitations to the exclusive rights of the copyright holder. Fair use provisions are intentionally vague in nature and offer only guidelines for the use of copyrighted material. When deciding if a particular use of copyrighted material falls under fair use provisions you must consider:

- The nature of the copyrighted work
- The purpose and character of the use
- The amount and substantiality of the portion used
- The effect of use on the potential market for the copyrighted work

The key word in the application of the fair use doctrine is "limited."

Fair Use for Instructors

Copying by teachers must meet the tests of brevity and spontaneity:

- Brevity refers to how much of the work you can copy.
- Spontaneity refers to how many times you can copy.

According to the rule, the need to copy should occur closely in time to the need to use the copies, generally following the "one semester rule." If you use something on one occasion within one semester or part of a semester, it is more likely to be seen as fair use. If you use something repeatedly, it is less likely to be



considered fair use. The expectation is that you will obtain permission as soon as it is feasible. Using something over a period of multiple semesters or years is not within the spirit of the fair use exception.

One Course, One School, One Time

The copies should include a notice of copyright acknowledging the author of the work.

What Counts as Fair Use?

Here are some general examples of excerpts from published materials that might be copied and used in the classroom and fall under the fair use guidelines for a limited period of time:

- A chapter from a book (never the entire book)
- An article from a magazine or newspaper
- Short stories, essays or poems (A single work is the norm whether it comes from an individual work or a collection.)
- A chart, graph, diagram, drawing, cartoon or picture from a book, periodical, or newspaper
- Poetry (short poems of 250 words or less)
- Prose (short excerpts of 1,000 words or less)
- Illustrations (copies of charts, graphs, diagrams, drawings, cartoons, or pictures)

The idea of fair use for classroom copying is that whenever possible the work should be purchased. Classroom copying is not meant to replace textbooks or workbooks used in the classroom. Pupils cannot be charged more than the actual cost of photocopying. The number of copies cannot exceed more than one copy per pupil, and a notice of copyright must be included on each copy.

What Should Be Avoided?

- Making multiple copies of different works that could substitute for the purchase of books, publisher's reprints, or periodicals
- Copying the same works from semester to semester
- Copying the same material for several different courses at the same or different institutions
- Copying more than nine separate times in a single semester

Internet Downloads

The Internet is simply a different form of storage and delivery. The ease with which files can be copied and reproduced makes it tempting as a free source of material, but copyright protections apply to electronic media as fully as they do to other forms.

Text

The rules for text as they apply in physical (hard copy) form also apply to text in the electronic form. The guidelines, rules and limitations remain the same, i.e., short excerpts of limited scope, used for a limited time and credited to the copyright holder.

Music and Video

With the exception of songs, movies and TV shows that have been released by the copyright holder for free distribution; all recorded material must be purchased. This applies if the work is recorded on a disk for sale at a local store, or a digital download from the Web. Illegal downloading of this kind of material through file sharing, bitTorrent sites, etc., constitutes a crime with both civil and criminal penalties. In addition, it is possible that the college could lose Internet access if its facilities are used for illegal downloading.



Broadcast and Performance Licensing

Whenever recorded music is broadcast or theatrical plays and music are performed by college groups, the college must pay a licensing fee.

CCC Responsibilities when Copyright Violation Occurs

Disable access to the materials violating copyright and suspend the network connection of the computer using these materials.

Inform the alleged infringer of the existing complaints. CCC does not perform digital forensics, but can provide more information about the specific files that prompted a copyright complaint.

Forward the student's name to the Vice President of Student Affairs office for disciplinary action. Violations can result in sanctions including but not limited to warning, probation, interim suspension, suspension, or expulsion. [Revised April 22, 2014]

Student Responsibilities

Students are responsible for all activities on the campus network originating from computer(s) registered in their names. Copyright holders reserve the right to contact the college for each instance of copyright infringement. Students may need to seek legal counsel and may be required to pay fines. [Added 9-19-11]

TEACH Act

Colby Community College abides by the Technology, Education, and Copyright Harmonization (TEACH) Act of 2002, Division C, Title III, Subtitle C of the 21st Century Department of Justice Appropriations Authorization Act, Pub. L. No. 107-272, 116 Stat. 1758, 1910 (amending chapter 1, Title 17, United States Code, to incorporate provisions relating to use of copyrighted works for distance education, enacted November 2, 2001. [Added 9-17-12]

[Policy Reviewed Jan. 2021]



CRIME AWARENESS AND CAMPUS SECURITY ACT OF 1990

In compliance with Title II of Public Law 101-542 (The Crime Awareness and Campus Security Act of 1990), the following policies have been put in place at Colby Community College. The policy statements will be in the College Catalog when revisions are scheduled. [Revised April 22, 2014]

- A. Students are encouraged to inform appropriate college officials, e.g., the Residence Life Director, Living Center Coordinators and Vice President of Student Affairs of any illegal activities. Students will be informed that these are the appropriate officials through the use of their college catalogs and orientation activities. [Revised April 2014; September 2020]
- B. Twenty-four hour supervision of the Living Centers is maintained. The Living Center Coordinators or their substitutes are present during all calendar days in which students are on campus. Dorms are closed from the conclusion of the fall semester until the day before spring registration. Exceptions to this policy may be made by the Vice President of Student Affairs for the following reasons: (1) Resident student is participating in a college activity; (2) resident student is an international student; (3) resident student is employed by CCC and has to perform campus duties; (4) student is performing an internship or externship associated with their respective degree.
- C. All buildings, with the exception of the residence dormitories, Bedker Memorial Complex and the student union, are secured at 10:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. The student union hours are 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. on Saturday and Sundays.
- D. Resident students are encouraged to report unlawful acts to the local authorities or the aforementioned appropriate college officials. The designated appropriate college officials are charged with the responsibility of informing the Vice President of Student Affairs or the police department of such acts. Students are encouraged through publication in the College Catalog to report crimes to the appropriate official. [Revised April 2014; September 2020]
- E. Regular contact will be made by the Vice President of Student Affairs with the Chief of Police to obtain an accurate recording of off-campus student activities.

[Reviewed September 2020]



DEGREES AND CERTIFICATES

The college awards the following degrees and certificates:

- Associate of Arts Degree
- Associate of Science Degree
- Associate of General Studies
- Associate of Applied Science Degree
- Certificates of Completion
- Technical Certificates

[Reviewed October 2022]



EMPLOYMENT

As an Equal Opportunity Employer, Colby Community College the College does not discriminate with respect to hiring, continuation of employment, promotion, tenure, other employment practices, application for admission or career services and placement on the basis of race, color, gender, age, disability, national origin or ancestry, sexual orientation or religion All personnel actions such as recruitment, selection, compensation, benefits, and promotions are included in the college's Equal Employment Opportunity Policy. [Revised April 2014; December 2020]

1. Procedure for Selecting Full-Time College Personnel (other than President or senior staff).

- a. Vacant positions may be advertised first internally, to allow current employees an opportunity to apply. Vacancies which are not filled through internal transfer shall be advertised in appropriate media and through educational outlets to solicit external candidates. In exigent circumstances, as determined by the President and/or Board, the hiring procedure may be modified to best meet the needs of the institution, while remaining mindful of the Equal Employment Opportunity Policy. [Revised April 22, 2014]
- b. Position announcements will be developed and disseminated by the Director of Public Information, with assistance from the appropriate administrator(s). These announcements must include the position title, function, qualifications, salary range, and application requirements. [Updated December 2020]
- c. For consideration, external candidates should have a thoroughly completed application. This will include a letter of interest referencing the position or an official CCC application, current résumé with a minimum of five references (including address/telephone/email) and all postsecondary transcripts. (Unofficial transcripts will be accepted). Letters of recommendation are encouraged but not required. The selected candidate will provide official college transcripts, successfully complete a background check, and complete any additional required paperwork prior to employment. Late applications may not be reviewed until all other applications have been given due consideration. [Updated December 2020]
- d. Positions that require special skills, such as but not limited to typing, mathematical computation, and computer proficiency, may have qualifying tests to ensure that applicants are appropriately qualified. Faculty positions may also require classroom demonstrations as a part of the interview process. Further, a written exercise to demonstrate communication skills may also be required of all candidates.
- e. A search committee, including a chairperson, will be appointed by the President in consultation with college administration. The committee should be representative of the institution and sensitive to the college mission and goals. Generally, a committee will have between five and seven members; a non-voting student member may also be appointed depending upon the specific vacancy.
- f. The search committee will conduct candidate screening, which includes verifying references and applicant information. An appropriate number of the most qualified applicants will be selected for interview. Though this number will vary based on the size of the applicant pool, it will generally be between three and ten candidates. In some cases, the position may be re-advertised when no suitable applicant is identified in the



selection process. It is expected that all discussions and shared information be kept confidential by the committee; violation of privacy may result in disciplinary action by the college. All candidates should be asked the same set of questions in order to ensure fairness in the process. Follow-up questions may be asked only for the purposes of clarification of a candidate's response. All application materials will be maintained in the President's office and may not leave the administration area in Thomas Hall.

- g. Following interviews and deliberation, the search committee will submit to the President a report which includes the top three finalists (or less, if fewer are deemed suitable) in order of preference. The President, along with additional administrators when appropriate, will interview any or all of the finalists and notify the committee of the final selection. The President will subsequently recommend the final candidate to the Board of Trustees for employment with the College.
- h. A complete file of all search committee materials, including applications, reports, notes and other written communication, will be maintained in the President's office for a minimum of three years. [Revised June 2011]
- 2. Salary. Salary and wages shall not be related to or based on race, color, gender, age, disability, national origin or ancestry, sexual orientation, or religion of any employee. As additional women and minority group members are hired, their salaries and level of employment must favorably compare with other newly hired employees with the same qualifications. Officials responsible for final salary and wage decisions will periodically review existing salaries to ensure compliance with this policy. If necessary, the President may advise the vice presidents or supervisor to readjust the salary recommendation to correct inequities related to race, color, gender, age, disability, national origin or ancestry, sexual orientation, or religion.
- 3. <u>Fringe Benefits</u>. In addition to wages and salaries, any employment benefits appropriate to particular groups of employees of Colby Community College who receive all or part of their salaries from the Board of Trustees will be applicable to all personnel regardless of race, color, gender, age, disability, national origin or ancestry, sexual orientation or religion. [Updated December 2020]
 - a. All insurance annuity and other such contracts shall be examined and where unwarranted differences based on sex exist, efforts shall be instituted to rectify these discrepancies.
 - b. Maternity leave shall be made available with no career penalties attached.
 - c. Reasonable time off without penalty shall be granted equally to men and women for necessary emergency family care.
 - d. Any female employee shall be allowed to continue working during pregnancy for as long as her physician certifies that she is able to do so.
 - e. Pregnancy or childbirth requiring leave of absence shall be treated as a temporary disability.
- 4. Special Regulations.



- a. Marital status or the prospect of marriage shall not be a condition for employment. No employee shall have direct supervisor responsibilities over another employee in which the supervisor is an immediate family member or they are engaged in a romantic relationship.
- b. Employment of a qualified person to a permanent or temporary position shall be made without regard to family relationships such as the person holds with other faculty or staff members, except in areas of financial management and where the appointment involves supervisory relations or participation in management decisions affecting salary, promotion or continuing employment of a spouse. [Revised April 22, 2014]
- c. Efforts shall be made to place women and members of minorities in administrative and institutional roles throughout the College. [Revised April 22, 2014]
- d. All those at any level responsible for committee assignments will make genuine efforts to assure that all groups are represented on policy and decision-making committees for the College. [Revised April 2014]
- 5. Promotion. All individuals responsible for promotion of the college faculty and staff will:
 - a. Compare the promotion records of men, women and minorities. [Revised January, 2014]
 - b. Consider employees within their divisions who presently hold positions that under-utilize their talents for promotion when college vacancies occur which would more fully utilize their skills.

[Reviewed July 2020]



ETHICS/INTEGRITY

Colby Community College is committed to operating in furtherance of its tax-exempt purposes and in compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, including those concerning accounting and auditing, and prohibits fraudulent practices by any of its board members, officers, employees, or volunteers. This policy outlines a procedure for employees to report actions that an employee reasonably believes violates a law, or regulation or that constitutes fraudulent accounting or other practices. This policy applies to any matter which is related to Colby Community College's business and does not relate to private acts of an individual not connected to the business of Colby Community College.

If an employee has a reasonable belief that an employee or Colby Community College has engaged in any action that violates any applicable law, or regulation, including those concerning accounting and auditing, or constitutes a fraudulent practice, the employee is expected to immediately report such information to their immediate supervisor. If the employee does not feel comfortable reporting the information to their immediate supervisor, he or she is expected to report the information to the HR Department of the College. Failure to report this type of information, could result in negative or adverse sanctions including termination of the employee.

All reports will be followed up promptly, and an investigation conducted. In conducting its investigations, Colby Community College will strive to keep the identity of the complaining individual as confidential as possible, while conducting an adequate review and investigation.

Colby Community College will not retaliate against an employee in the terms and conditions of employment because that employee: (a) reports to a supervisor, to the executive director, the Board of Directors or to a federal, state or local agency what the employee believes in good faith to be a violation of the law; or (b) participates in good faith in any resulting investigation or proceeding, or (c) exercises his or her rights under any state or federal law(s) or regulation(s) to pursue a claim or take legal action to protect the employee's rights.

Colby Community College may take disciplinary action (up to and including termination) against an employee who in management's assessment has engaged in retaliatory conduct in violation of this policy.

[In addition, Colby Community College will not, with the intent to retaliate, take any action harmful to any employee who has provided to law enforcement personnel or a court truthful information relating to the commission or possible commission by Colby Community College or any of its employees of a violation of any applicable law or regulation.]

Supervisors will be trained on this policy and Colby Community College's prohibition against retaliation in accordance with this policy.

[Added July 2015] [Reviewed December 2020]



ESSENTIAL SKILLS OUTCOMES

Each degree offered has a specifically defined core curriculum. The courses may vary among degrees but are all designed to prepare students for success in their chosen fields, both in additional academic endeavors as well as in the workplace. The College has identified the following expectations for all students who complete a degree at Colby Community College:

- Student demonstrates accountability for their actions in and out of the classrooms.
- Student communicates effectively and professionally in a variety of settings.
- Student gains confidence in both academic and personal abilities.
- Student develops and use the following skills: open-mindedness, creativity, problem solving, critical thinking, teamwork, work ethic, time-management, and adaptability.

[Revised October 2022. The Essential Skills Outcomes were created and voted on by the Academic Council to replace the General Education Outcomes.]

FAMILY EDUCATIONAL RIGHTS AND PRIVACY ACT (FERPA) OF 1974

Colby Community College complies with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 in the collection, maintenance and dissemination of official student records. These records are subject to inspection and review by the student. The college has 45 days to respond to individual requests; however, this amount of time would not normally be required. Students wishing to challenge the accuracy of their records may contact the Vice President of Student Affairs or the Registrar.

The college is authorized under Section 43 (Buckley Amendment) to publish and will publish directory information, collectively or individually, unless students notify the Student Privacy Officer (Registrar) in writing of any or all of the categories that should not be released. This notification by students must be made by the end of the third week of classes in the fall and spring semester and by the end of the first week of classes for the summer session.

Faculty and staff are expected to comply with the law. No confidential student information should be released, including information relating to students' classes, grades, or other personally identifiable information.

[Reviewed January 2021]



HARASSMENT

Colby Community College will not tolerate discriminatory harassment on the basis of any status protected by College policy or law. All employees, students and constituents are entitled to a working environment and educational environment free of discriminatory harassment. No individual should be harassed or discriminated against on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, or disability. The College's harassment policy is not meant to inhibit or prohibit educational content or discussions inside or outside of the classroom that include germane, but controversial or sensitive subject matters protected by academic freedom, or the 1st Amendment. The sections below describe the specific forms of legally prohibited harassment that are also prohibited under College policy.

Bias-Related Harassment

Harassment constitutes a form of discrimination that is prohibited by law. Colby Community College will seek to remedy all forms of harassment when reported, whether or not the harassment rises to the level of creating a hostile environment. When harassment rises to the level of creating a hostile environment, the College may, to the extent it has the authority to do so, also impose sanctions on the harasser. The College's harassment policy explicitly prohibits any form of harassment, defined as unwelcome conduct on the basis of actual or perceived membership in a protected class, by any member or group of the community.

A hostile environment may be created by: oral, written, graphic, or physical conduct that is sufficiently severe, persistent/pervasive and objectively offensive that it interferes with, limits or denies the ability of an individual to participate in or benefit from educational programs or activities or employment access, benefits or opportunities. Offensive conduct that does not rise to the level of discrimination may not result in the imposition of discipline under College policy, but may be addressed through remedial actions, education, training and/or effective conflict resolution mechanisms.

For assistance with conflict resolution employees should contact the Human Resources Manager and the area supervisor and students should contact the Director of Residence and Student Life or Dean of Student Affairs.

Sexual Harassment

The Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and the State of Kansas regard sexual harassment as a form of sex/gender discrimination and, therefore, as an unlawful discriminatory practice and is prohibited under College policy. Colby Community College has adopted the following definition of sexual harassment:

Sexual harassment is unwelcome, sexual or gender-based verbal, written, online and/or physical conduct, and is based on power differentials (quid pro quo). Anyone experiencing sexual harassment in any College program is encouraged to report it immediately to the appropriate Title IX Coordinator.

[Revised October 2020]



HIPAA

Colby Community College shall comply with all applicable Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) provisions ensuring the confidentiality of protected health information.

Appropriate and timely professional development activities regarding HIPAA requirements shall be provided.

All staff shall abide by HIPAA requirements and maintain the confidentiality of protected health information. Notice shall be provided to staff and students as required by law.

[Reviewed January 2021; October 2023]

MISSION

Challenge students to adapt to a diverse society. Create opportunities for student growth. Connect student learning with professional experiences.

[Reviewed February 2020; July 2022; October 2023]

NOTICE OF NON-DISCRIMINATION

Colby Community College provides equality of opportunity to its applicants for admission, enrolled students, graduates and employees. The College does not discriminate with respect to hiring, continuation of employment, promotion, tenure, other employment practices, application for admission or career services and placement on the basis of race, color, gender, age, disability, national origin or ancestry, sexual orientation, or religion. For inquiries regarding the non-discrimination policies, contact the Vice President of Student Affairs, Colby Community College, 1255 S. Range Ave., Colby, KS 67701, (785-460-5490). [Revised April 22, 2014; reviewed November 2020, March 2023]

Title VI, Title IX and Section 504 ADA complaints may also be filed with the Regional Office for Civil Rights, Address correspondence to:

U.S. Commission on Civil Rights Central Regional Office 400 State Avenue, Suite 908 Kansas City, KS 66101 913-551-1400

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission Gateway Tower II 4th & State Avenue, 9th Floor Kansas City, KS 66101 913-551-5655



OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS

The Kansas Open Records Act grants you the right to inspect and obtain copies of public records created or maintained by public agencies in Kansas. The Open Records Act, K.S.A. 45-215 et seq., as amended, declares that it is the public policy of Kansas that "public records shall be open for inspection by any person." Public records are defined as "any recorded information, regardless of form or characteristics, which is made, maintained or kept by or is in the possession of any public agency. Colby Community College is classified as a public agency for the purposes of this Act.

Public records maintained by Colby Community College:

- Regulations
- Policies
- Minutes/records of open meetings
- Salaries of public officials
- Agency budget documents

Your Rights

You have the right to request assistance from Colby Community College's Freedom of Information Officer at any time.

You have the right:

- To inspect and obtain copies of public records that are not exempted from disclosure by a specific law.
- To obtain a copy of the agency's policies and procedures for access to records.
- To receive a written response to your request within three business days. The response may inform you that it will take additional time to produce the records.
- To file a complaint with the Kansas Attorney General if you feel your request for public records is wrongfully denied.

Your Responsibilities

- You must request records written, photographic, or computerized. The Kansas Open Records Act does not require an agency to answer questions, prepare reports, or compile information.
- An agency may require you to put your request in writing, and you must provide proof of your identity, if requested.
- Reasonable fees, not exceeding actual cost, may be charged for access to records, copies
 of records, and staff time for processing your request.

Requesting a Record

Colby Community College's Director of Public Relations is the designated official Freedom of Information Officer.



CCC prefers that requests to access public records be submitted with the form on the institution's website at www.colbycc.edu/open-records. Please include the following information in your request:

- A contact person
- Organization (if requesting on its behalf)
- Mailing address
- Email address
- Daytime telephone number
- A specific description of the requested records to expedite the process

Requests can also be sent to:

Freedom of Information Officer Colby Community College 1255 S. Range Ave. Colby, Kansas 67701

publicinfo@colbyscc.edu

* Regular office hours on all business days, excluding Saturday and Sunday, are from 8:00 am -5:00 p.m. The College is closed on official holidays and seasonal breaks.

Delayed and Declined Requests

All effort is made to fully respond to your records request as soon as it is received; however, a determinative response may be delayed if:

- Clarification or refined scope is required.
- Legal issues must be resolved before requested records can be produced.
- The records are archived or stored off-site.
- The scope or large volume of requested records requires more time to assess record existence, availability, and any fees incurred to produce.

If further delay is required, the College will provide its explanation and the earliest date by which it expects to provide a determinative response.

A request may be declined in whole or in part if:

- The requested records do not exist.
- The requested records are exempt from disclosure by law.
- The request is insufficiently clear in scope.

Permission to access public records may also be declined if the request "places an unreasonable burden in producing public records or the custodian has reason to believe that repeated requests are intended to disrupt other essential functions of the public agency." See K.S.A. 45-218(e).



Exceptions

The Kansas Open Records Act recognizes that certain records contain private or privileged information, and the agency is not required to provide access to those records. The Act lists several exceptions, including but not limited to:

- Records closed by the rules of evidence
- Personnel records of public employees
- Medical treatment records
- Criminal investigation records
- Notes, preliminary drafts, or records in which opinions are expressed or actions are proposed
- Records for which disclosure would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy
- Proprietary business information
- Records protected by attorney/client privilege
- For the complete list, see K.S.A. §45-221(a).

Records more than 70 years old may be disclosed without regard to the above-listed exemptions, unless exempt under other federal or state laws.

Records only partially exempt will have the exempt portions excluded prior to production. Records that would unduly disclose individual identities will not be produced.

Nothing in the Kansas Open Records Act supersedes federal law, including the Health Insurance

Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

While FERPA permits disclosure of student "Directory Information" without student consent, Colby Community College's Student Policy does not define email addresses in bulk as Directory Information; therefore, listings of multiple student email addresses are not produced for any purpose.

Colby Community College does not produce listings of student names and addresses for commercial purposes pursuant to K.S.A. §45-230. If a request is made to obtain names and contact information of students or personnel (directory information), the response will include a certification form that must be signed under oath (a notarized statement) affirming that the information will not be used for solicitation or any other prohibited purpose. If the notarized certification form is not submitted to Colby Community College, the request will be denied.

Fees

Commensurate with the actual costs in College employee time and resources, fees shall be charged for the retrieval, review, and production of public records. In accordance with K.S.A. §45-219, the following fee rates are established by the College may be applied, with payment of total estimated fees required by cash, check or money order *in advance* of records production if the estimated fee expense is equal to or exceeds \$25.

All charges or fees shall be paid by certified check or money order made payable to "Colby Community



College" and should be sent to:

Freedom of Information Officer Colby Community College 1255 S Range Ave Colby KS 67701

If the actual cost in time and resources exceeds the fee estimate, the requestor will be billed for the balance of fees incurred, with full payment required before records production. If the actual cost is less than the fee estimate, the requestor will be refunded any difference over \$5.00. Fees are:

- Executive employee rate based upon the individual's annual salary/hourly pay rate. (Executive employees are President and his/her direct reports)
- Manager rate for retrieval and/or review: \$50/hour (Directors/Coordinators)
- Staff rate for retrieval and/or assembly to produce: \$30/hour
- Specialized computer retrieval: \$50/hour
- Copies: 25 cents per page for paper copies; 12.5 cents per page for electronic copies
- College attorney fee: \$200/hour

Requests for Electronic Format Records

The records custodian will be the sole judge of the ability of the agency to comply with any request for the records to be provided in electronic format or for records that must be produced in any specific computer-generated format.

Additional Information

If you have questions about the Act or Colby Community College's policies under it, or to obtain assistance in resolving disputes relating to the Act, contact Freedom Information Officer.

Freedom of Information Officer Colby Community College 1255 S. Range Ave. Colby, Kansas 67701

(785) 460-5411 publicinfo@colbycc.edu

The Solomon Amendment

Under the provisions of the Solomon Amendment (32 C.F.R. 216), Colby Community College is required to provide "student recruitment information" upon request to representatives of the Department of Defense for military recruiting purposes. This information includes student name, address, telephone number, date of birth, level of education or degrees received, major and the most recent previous educational institution in which the student was enrolled. For questions regarding the College's compliance with FERPA and the Solomon Amendment, contact Colby Community College. Fees as provided under KORA shall apply to these requests.



[Adopted November 2019] [Updated December 2020; January 2024; March 2024]

PHILOSOPHY

Colby Community College is dedicated to the belief that each individual in Northwest Kansas should have the opportunity to develop and extend skills and knowledge for the attainment of personal objectives.

Implicit in this belief is the idea that education is a lifelong process. The college encourages the people who live in this area to participate fully in its program of educational services. The college strives to meet the needs of its students regardless of age, sex, creed, race, aspiration or educational level.

Students attending Colby Community College are the most important people associated with the institution. All students deserve the opportunity to succeed regardless of their specific goals or aspirations. It is the intention of the college to encourage individual success. The individuality of students is respected and their potential is fostered through programs that include excellent classroom instruction, multiple opportunities for leadership, and an organized plan for counseling and advisement. Attending Colby Community College is designed to be a very personal experience for students. Education at Colby Community College is interesting, challenging and enjoyable.

PUBLICATION AND LOGO USE

The Public Relations Office is assigned the primary responsibility for overseeing the College's publications. Publications include those used for recruitment of new students, those sent to the College's various constituents as a medium for communicating official College information, and those deemed "image" publications that enhance recognition and understanding of the College.

Procedures

- 1. **All publications should be thoroughly planned.** Communication with the Public Relations Office about the scope of the project is recommended. Criteria to consider should include the number of copies needed, the type of paper, graphics, color, printing method, page size, binding, and the overall cost of publication.
- 2. All jobs for off-campus printing must be approved by a supervisor. This includes publications funded through grants and those for student organizations. The requester should follow the College purchasing policy



- 3. A draft of the publication should be edited by the requesting department and sent to the Public Relations Office for review.
- 4. Once a publication is produced, an electronic copy should be shared with the Public Relations Office to be archived.

Logo and Branding Standards

Visual materials, in both print and electronic form, convey the identity of the College. The overall goal is to formalize a unified institutional identity consistent with the Mission and Vision. Only approved logos as listed in the institutional style guide should be used on CCC documents, publications, and electronic mediums. The Public Relations Office will not authorize publications that do not comply with the logo guidelines.

Logo

The "Power C" is the official logo for Colby Community College and should be used when there is clear messaging from Colby Community College and for athletics.

Several versions of the CCC logo, horizontal and vertical, are available for different situations and layouts. Do not change or manipulate logo proportions or add any visual effects to the logo.

[Revised October 2022]

PURPOSES

To adequately address its institutional mission, Colby Community College has adopted seven purposes. They are intended to be dynamic and flexible to meet both student and community needs.

The Purposes are as follows:

- 1. Offer two-year college transfer programs leading to an associate degree for students who wish to obtain a baccalaureate degree after transferring to a four-year college or university.
- 2. Offer both Associate of Applied Science degrees and certificate programs in vocational and technical education for students who wish to gain competence in specific skill areas or to upgrade skills.
- 3. Offer a developmental education program to serve all students who need improved academic skills, including adult basic education and preparation for the tests of General Educational Development.
- 4. Offer continuing education courses and community service activities and assist economic development by providing customized on-site training.



- 5. Offer students a full range of support services.
- 6. Offer facilities and human resources in support of educational, civic and cultural endeavors.
- 7. Offer state-of-the-art technology systems to enhance the quality of life.

VISION

Colby Community College will be a national leader in academic and student success to transform the lives in the communities we serve.



APPENDIX

Employee Complaint Form

